






2. The Heavy Truck Ordinance is preempted by state and federal law, 

unconstitutionally and Unlawfully interferes with Plaintiffs' ability to use the state roads and the 

federal highway system to operate their businesses economically, was passed by City Council 

without the requisite legal authority to do so, and, although allegedly promulgated to address 

safety concerns, allows the most cited traffic violators to continue to transverse Morgantown's 

B4 Downtown Business District while preventing Plaintiffs from doing so. 

3. Accordingly, Plaintiffs seek declaratory relief and a permanent injunction 

preventing the enforcement of the Heavy Truck Ordinance, as well as their attorneys' fees and 

expenses. 

The Parties 

4. Plaintiff Nuzum Trucking Company ("Nuzum") is a duly formed and validly 

existing West Virginia Corporation engaged in a variety of motor carrier and freight trucking 

business enterprises, including, but not limited to, transporting resources and goods in, around, 

and through the City qf Morgantown's B4 Business District. Nuzum's principal office address is 

P.O. Box 38, Shinnston, West Virginia, 26431. 

5. Plaintiff Preston Contractors, Inc. ("Preston") is a duly formed and validly 

existing West Virginia corporation engaged in a variety of motor carrier and freight trucking 

business enterprises, including, but not limited to, transporting resources and goods in, around, 

and through the City of Morgantown's B4 Business District. Preston's principal office address is 

P.O. Box 606, Kingwood, West Virginia, 26537 

6. The Defendant, the City of Morgantown, West Virginia ("Morgantown" or "the 

City"), is a Class II city as defined in W. Va Code § 8-1-3. Based on long-standing West 

Virginia law, Morgantown, like every other municipality in West Virginia, has no inherent 
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powers. Morgantown is a creature of the State, and it can execute only those functions of 

municipal governmerit that have been specifically conferred upon it by the Constitution of West 

Virginia or delegated to it by the West Virginia Legislature. Further, Morgantown has no 

inherent or actual authority to trump or preempt state and federal laws and must, consistent with 

fundamental democratic and constitutional principles, ensure compliance with any and all state 

and federal laws. 

7. Morgantown functions solely through its instrumentalities, including its City 

Council, which, upon information and belief, was created by Morgantown's Charter, such 

Charter having been approved by Morgantown's electorate on April 29, 1977. 

8. Indispensable PartylDefendant, the West Virginia Department of Transportation, 

Division of Highways ("WV DOH"), is an executive, subsidiary agency of the West Virginia 

Department of Transportation, and is responsible for planning, engineering, right-of-way 

acquisitions, construction, reconstruction, control, traffic regulation and maintenance of more 

than 35,000 miles of West Virginia state roads. 

Venue 

9. This proceeding seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, among other things, 

presents an actual case and controversy within the Court's jurisdiction. 

10. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to W.Va. Code § 14-2-2 as the WV DOH 

is a state executive agency and proceedings against a state agency wherein a state agency is a 

party defendant "shall be brought and prosecuted only in the Circuit Court of Kanawha County, 

West Virginia." 

11. Plaintiffs unequivocally have standing because, as set forth herein: Plaintiffs have 

suffered an injury in fact; there is a causal connection between the conduct complained of and 
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the injury; it is likely that the injuries suffered by Plaintiffs will be redressed by adjudication of 

the merits; and Plaintiffs are affected West Virginia citizens and taxpayers. Further, this matter· 

is justiciable as it undisputedly involves a vital public function, access to state roads and 

highways free of unlawful municipal prohibitions, and it is foreseeable that in the absence of 

adjudication on the merits the issue will arise again. See e.g. White by White v. Linkinoggor, 

176 W.Va 410 (1986). 

A. Introduction 

12. The City of Morgantown has violated state and federal law through a series of 

incomprehensible municipal legislative actions and omissions in which its City Council has 

disregarded or otherwise ignored long-established state and federal laws to "force" into law an 

unlawful and unconstitutional ordinance barring heavy truck traffic from traversing state 

highways and state truck routes in Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

13. Morgantown's actions and omissions in this regard injure local trucking 

businesses, frustrate basic constitutional principles, and fail to acknowledge Morgantown's status 

as a local municipality that operates within the broader system of state and federal laws. 

14. Rather than acknowledge the clear legislative limitations prohibiting a 

municipality from regulating state highways and state truck routes in intrastate and interstate 

commerce, Morgantown has unquestionably exceeded the lawful authority vested in a 

municipality through unlawful and unconstitutional actions and omissions that directly and 

adversely affect Plaintiffs' business enterprises. 

15. The central legal issue in this action, whether a municipality has a right to prohibit 

arbitrarily defined "heavy truck" traffic from traveling on state highways, roads and state truck 
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routes within a municipality's confines, is clearly settled as a matter of statutory law. W.Va. 

Code § 17-4-1 is controlling authority and provides that: "[t]he authority and control over the 

state roads shall be vested in the commissioner of highways." Moreover, the West Virginia 

Supreme Court, in interpreting this statute firmly stated: "it was the policy of the Legislature in 

the enactment of the aforesaid statute [Chapter 17 of the W.Va. Code] to provide a 

comprehensive and all-embracing system of statutory law, establishing a general state road 

system ... and providing for and investing in the commission and the commissioner the exclusive 

power over the construction, maintenance and control of said system," and the Court further held 

that lithe S'tate Commissioner of Highways has exclusive authority and control over state roads." 

State ex reI. Keene v. Jordan. 192 W.Va. 131, 132-133 (l994)(emphasis added). 

16. Indeed, the Heavy Truck Ordinance is inconceivable, as it leads to the absurd 

result of empowering cities, such as Morgantown, to usurp the WV DOH's authority and control 

over the state road system. 

17. The foregoing citations represent a mere scintilla of the legal authority which 

Morgantown failed to acknowledge before passing the Heavy Truck Ordinance. 

18. Stated succinctly, state roads, state routes and state highways within Morgantown, 

and within other municipalities across West Virginia, are what they say they are: state roads, 

state highways and state routes under the exclusive jurisdiction and control of the WV DOH. 

The WV DOH, as the party with exclusive jurisdiction, is a necessary defendant in this action 

given WV DOH's unique role as the entity charged with oversight of West Virginia state road 

system. 

19. State highways and state routes are not city streets or city alleys, and 

municipalities have no authority or jurisdictional basis to interfere with WV DOH' . 
s operation 
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Route 2 near New Martinsville, West Virginia, United States Route 250 near Hundred, West 

Virginia, United . States Route 19 near Morgantown, West Virginia, Interstate 68, and Interstate 

79 in and around Morgantown. WV 7 cuts directly through downtown Morgantown and through 

Morgantown's B4 Business District. See Exhibit 3. 

27. By Order dated June 12, 1945, WV 7 was designated by the State Road 

Commission of West Virginia as a primary state route and on this date, jurisdiction of WV 7 

vested in the West Virginia State Road Commission. See Exhibit 4. 

28. Plaintiffs transport various products in their motor carriers to facilities located 

both in and around Morgantown via wV' 7 and to facilities located beyond Morgantown's 

borders. 

29. For decades, Plaintiffs have transported various products via WV 7 through 

Morgantown's B4 Business District into the broader system of intrastate and interstate commerce 

free of arbitrary and unlawful municipal regulations. 

30. Plaintiffs have historically transported these products in the most economical and 

lawful manner via usage ofWV 7. 

31. The use of and the right to the unimpeded use of intrastate and interstate State 

Routes, State Highways, Federal Routes, and the Federal Highways is of vital importance to and 

a primary asset of Plaintiffs in conducting their daily trucking operations. 

32. Unlawful and overly restrictive municipal regulations, such as the ordinance at 

issue, thwart Plaintiffs' businesses and may lead to substantial job losses due to increased costs. 

33. Plaintiffs exercise their right to participate in intrastate and interstate commerce in 

and around Morgantown's B4 Business District on a daily basis; in the course of their normal 

business operations, and have done so for decades. 
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C. Morgantown's Historic Failure to Ellaet a Truck Ordinance 

34. In the early 2000s a group of individuals with businesses and/or property located 

along WV 7 sought to prohibit heavy motor carriers from traversing in and around Morgantown's 

B4 Business District under the guise that motor carriers presented a safety risk to Morgantown's 

pedestrians. 

35. Specifically, upon information and belief, on or about May 20. 2005, a 

Morgantown Councilmember whose law office was located on WV 7 initiated the drafting of a 

proposed ordinance prohibiting heavy trucks from traveling in and through Morgantown's B4 

Business District. 

36. Upon infonnation and belief, this ordinance was specifically proposed and, 

thereafter, drafted to prevent motor carriers such as Plaintiffs from transporting products via WV 

7. 

37. Upon infonnation and belief, on or about May 20, 2005, Morgantown was 

advised by the WV DOH that it had no legal authority to restrict ANY truck traffic from 

traveling on WV 7 in and through Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

38. Upon infonnation and belief, ignoring the WV DOH's position, the then acting 

City Council nonetheless continued to vet the proposed ordinance banning heavy truck motor 

carriers from traveling in and through Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

39. On September 2,2005, Morgantown's then acting City Manager, at the direction 

of City Council, mailed a copy of a proposed City Ordinance barring heavy trucks from traveling 

through Morgantown's B4 Business District to the WV DOH in the hope that the WV DOH's 

position would change upon a thorough review of the proposed City ordinance. See Exhibit 5. 

40. Morgantown's correspondence invited the WV DOH's comments and criticisms 
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concerning the legality of its proposed prohibition of heavy truck traffic motor carriers from 

traveling in and through Morgantown's B4 Business District. Id. 

41. Morgantown's proposed 2005 ordinance sought to regulate heavy truck traffic 

pursuant to W. Va. Code §§ 17C-17-12(c) and 17-4-26, et seq., and pursuant to unspecified 

federal common law. Id. 

42. On October 4, 2005, the WV DOH responded to Morgantown's correspondence. 

See Exhibit 6. 

43. In its response, the WV DOH concluded as follows: "even if the proposed 

ordinance was revised to meet the objections noted above, it would be subject to Federal 

preemption under 49 U.S.C. 14501 ... the purported safety concerns recited by the MPO, and 

adopted by the city in the proposed ordinance, are already addressed by state and federal law and 

may be addressed by a more narrowly crafted ordinance. Moreover, these concerns are not 

unique to Morgantown's Downtown (B-4) Business District or demonstrated to be substantially 

different from similar impacts in other urban and non-urban areas of the state. In addition, if the 

concerns are those of safety, there appears to be no rational basis for exempting local delivery 

cOmI11erciai motor vehicles or governmental entities' commercial motor vehicles." Id. 

44. Despite the WV DOH's response, upon infonnation and belief, in January and 

February 2006, the then acting City Council again vetted the legality of the proposed ordinance 

in its Committee of the Whole .Meetings. 

45. Concerning Morgantown's authority to enact such an ordinance, Morgantown's 

then acting deputy mayor stated as follows: "It would be nice if heavy trucks didn't go througb 

downtown ... but our city attorney doesn't think we have the authority, and the DOH doesn't 
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think we have the authority. I don't want to set up an ordinance that leads to litigation. II See 

Exhibit 7. 

46. Ultimately, frustrated by the WV DOH's position and at the insistence of certain 

City Council members, Morgantown sought a formal legal opinion from retained counsel 

justifying the attempt to prohibit heavy truck traffic in its B4 Business District. 

47. On or about March 6, 2006, Steptoe & Johnson, PLLC, in the capacity of 

Morgantown's counsel, delivered a Memorandum to Morgantown addressing the legality of the 

proposed heavy truck ordinance. See Exhibit 8. 

48. In addressing state preemption, Morgantown's retained counsel advised the City 

to refrain from passing such an ordinance. Id. 

49. Upon information and belief, on March 28, 2006, the proposed heavy truck 

ordinance was yet again vetted by Morgantown's City Council at its Committee of the Whole 

Meeting. 

50. Upon information and belief, the then acting City Council decided on March 28, 

2006, that the as-proposed ordinance was overly broad and decided to craft a more "narrowly 

tailored" ordinance in a last chance effort to force the enactment of municipal legislation. 

51. Upon information and belief, after the March 28, 2006 meeting, Morgantown 

sought a survey from the WV DOH highlighting the traffic and safety concerns associated with 

heavy truck traffic in Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

52. Upon information and belief, at Morgantown's insistence, on June 13th and 14th 

and July 25th and 26th, 2006, the WV DOH took traffic counts along WV 7 and conducted a 

safety analysis. 

53. Upon information and belief, rather than bolstering Morgantown's safety 
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concerns, the WV DOH survey found that there were no safety concerns with the then-existing 

truck traffic and that dwing peak traffic hours. heavy trucks did not exceed three (3) percent of 

all vehicles passing through the four main intersections in Morgantown's B4 District connected 

to WV 7. 

54. Upon information and belief, on August 2, 2006, the WV DOH findings were 

distributed to the then sitting City Council members. 

55. Upon information and belief, personnel from the WV DOH were in attendance at 

Morgantown's August 2, 2006 City Council meeting. 

56. Upon information and belief, concerning the WV DOH's recommendations and 

the lack of any actual safety concern, Morgantown's then acting City Manager stated as follows: 

"We basically have three options. We could appeal the DOH decision to the secretary of state or 

the governor; we could seek changes in state law that allows cities to have more control; or we 

could do as the letter instructed [and stand down]." See Exhibit 9. 

57. Upon information and belief, Morgantown did not appeal the DOH decision to the 

secretary of state or the governor or obtain changes in state law that allow municipalities to have 

greater municipal control related to the regulation of "heavy trucks". 

58. mtimately, with the City Council recognizing that it lacked the legal authority to 

enact any ordinance regulating heavy truck traffic in Morgantown's B4 Business District related 

to WV 7, the proposed ordinance died on the floor. 

D. Morgantown's Current Enactment Process 

59. Upon information and belief, in 2013, a group of individuals labeling themselves 

as "Safe Streets Morgantown" again advanced the concept of a prohibition on heavy truck traffic 

in Morgantown's B4 Business District. 
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60. Upon infonnation and belief, the prohibition on heavy truck traffic advanced by 

"Safe Streets of Morgantown" was spearheaded by the son-in-law of the fonner· City 

Councilmember who initiated the attempted heavy truck prohibition in 2005 

61. Upon information and belief, by letter dated June 17. 2014, "Safe Streets 

Morgantown" sought to compel municipal regulation of heavy trucks by proposing an ordinance 

to City Council. See Exhibit 10. 

62. Upon information and belief, "Safe S?"eets Morgantown" did not identify any 

safety concern, or any source of empirical data evidencing a safety concern, in its June 17, 2014, 

correspondence. Id. 

63. Upon infonnation and belief, "Safe Streets Morgantown" failed to acknowledge 

intrastate and interstate legal concerns in its correspondence as it was aware of the shortcomings 

of its proposed legislations. Id. 

64. Following the June 17, 2014 transmittal, presentations and pleas were made by 

"Safe Streets Morgantown" to City Council to enact the as proposed heavy truck ordinance. 

65. Upon information and belief, certain City Council members ("Members") with 

acute knowledge of Morgantown's historic failures to pass such an ordinance campaigned on a 

platform that if elected to City Council they would prohibit heavy trucks from traversing state 

highways located in MorgantoWn. 

66. Upon information and belief, in an attempt to justify their actions, these Members 

directed Morgantown's City Manager to again confer with the WV DOH to attempt to find some 

machination to justify enactment. 

67. At the Members' direction, on July 25, 2014, Morgantown's City Manager met 

with Paul A. Mattox, Jr., the Secretary of Transportation/Commissioner of Highways for the 
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State of West Virginia, and Anthony G. Halkias, Director of the Legal Division at the \VV DOH, 

concerning the Members' desire to enact an ordinance barring heavy trucks from traveling in and 

over state highways located in Morgantown's B4 Business District. See Exhibit 11. 

68. By letter dated July 29, 2014, the WV DOH finnly stated its position: "West 

Virginia Code Sections 17-4-27 and 17C-17-12 do not allow for local management of roads 

within the state road system. The Legislature has granted the Commissioner of Highways 

plenary power to manage and control the use of public highways comprising the state road 

system. Therefore, without permission of the Commissioner, any such municipal regulation 

would be invalid. II Id. 

69. As further stated in the WV DOH's letter, "the City's broad reading of one specific 

statutory provision allowing municipalities to regulate traffic directly conflicts with several other 

express powers granted to the Commissioner. II And, "in this specific factual instance, the 

Division of Highways maintains proper jurisdiction over the roadways at issue." Id. 

70. On July 29, 2014, a proposed ordinance prohibiting "Heavy Truck" traffic was 

presented to City Council by "Safe Streets Morgantown." 

71. At the Committee of the Whole Meeting on July 29, 2014, "Safe Streets 

Morgantown" continually claimed that the heavy trucks were a safety concern and certain 

Members expressed an unfounded willingness to pass the ordinance despite its illegality. 

72. Concerning the safety of "heavy trucks, II on August 6, 2014, Morgantown City 

Staff delivered a letter to City Council identifying, the companies and organizations involved in 

the most motor vehicle accidents in Morgantown from 2006 through present. See Exhibit 12. 

73. The letter evidences that the top five (5) companies and organizations with 

documented traffic incidents in and around Morgantown's B4 Business District are: (l) Mountain 

-13-



Line; (2) Monongalia County Schools; (3) Advantage Tank Lines; (4) Allied Waste; and (5) Blue 

Ridge Beverage. Id. 

74. Upon information and belief, Morgantown City Staff also expressed concerns 

regarding enforcement of any proposed ordinance prohibiting heavy truck motor carriers from 

traveling through Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

75. Plaintiffs, and any similarly situated motor carriers, are absent from the list of the 

top five (5) companies and organizations with documented traffic incidents in and around 

Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

76. As illustrated below, under the adopted Heavy Truck Ordinance, all motor 

vehicles associated with the aforementioned five (5) incident prone companies are exempt from 

the adopted ordinance. 

77. Following these findings, in yet another attempt to find a machination justifying 

enactment, Morgantown again retained counsel to issue a formal opinion, this time solely 

concerning federal preemption. 

78. On August 15, 2014, Kay, Casto, & Chaney PLLC tendered a legal opinion to 

Morgantown that further eroded the City's authority to enact and enforce any municipal 

ordinance prohibiting heavy truck traffic from traversing Morgantown's B4 Business District on 

state highways, such as WV 7. See Exhibit 13. 

79. Upon information and belief, on the day of the First Reading, August 19, 2014, 

City Council, at the insistence of the "Safe Streets Morgantown" group and certain Members, 

and in response to the concerns raised by Kay, Casto, & Chaney PLLC, edited the proposed 

ordinance to express general and unsubstantiated safety concerns in a pre-textual manner for the 
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calculated purpose of bolstering the proposed ordinance, in direct contravention of the actual 

fIndings regarding safety, as expressed by Morgantown City Staff. See Exhibit 1. 

80. On August 19,2014, at a regularly scheduled meeting and after the insertion of 

the aforementioned pre-textual edits, City Council voted 6-1 to enact the as-presented Heavy 

Truck Ordinance at the ordinance's First Reading. 

81. At this passage, City Council failed to produce any evidence of incidents, 

accidents, or data docwnenting safety, noise, or pollution violations, citations, or concerns 

regarding "heavy truck" motor carriers. Rather, City Council proceeded to pass the Heavy Truck 

Ordinance at its First Reading under the guise of general safety concerns attributable to heavy 

trucks. 

E. The Enacted Heavy Truck Ordinance 

82. As previously stated, on September 2, 2014, City Council passed the Heavy Truck 

Ordinance amending Articles 301 and 347 of Morgantown's traffic code, thereby prohibiting 

"heavy trucks" from being operated in the Downtown Business District, as defmed in Article 301 

of the City's [Morgantown's] Traffic Code. See Exhibit 1. 

83. As enacted, the term "heavy truck" "means any vehicle which is designed or 

operated for the transportation of property and 1) has combined declared gross weight over 

26,000 pounds as combined declared gross weight is defined in W. Va Code § 17A-3-3(c), and 

2) has three or more axles in total." Id. 

84. As enacted, the Heavy Truck Ordinance defines "Downtown Business District" as 

lithe entirety of the B-4 General Business District... not [to] include Beechhurst Avenue, 

University Avenue south of Beechhurst A venue, and Don Knotts Boulevard south of University 

A venue. II Id. 
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85. Initially, the Heavy Truck Ordinance was to be effective immediately upon 

passage by the City Council. However, City Council postponed enforcement for a ninety (90) 

day period so that Morgantown could install scales, sign age and other infrastructure to enforce 

the Heavy Truck Ordinance. 

86. The Heavy Truck Ordinance does not limit or restrict: 

1) the operation of any Heavy Trucks in the Downtown Business District when 
that operation is necessary to conduct business at a destination within the 
Downtown Business District where merchandise or material is loaded or unloaded 
during the nonnal course of business; 

(2) the operation of emergency or military vehicles; 

(3) the operation of vehicles by public utilities; 

(4) the operation of any governmental or quasi-governmental vehicle in the 
performance of any official function or duty; 

(5) the operation of solid waste disposal vehicles; 

(6) the operation of vehicles lawfully engaged in the business of towing, hauling 
or carrying wrecked or disabled vehicles; 

(7) the operation of trucks upon any officially established detour in any case 
where a truck could lawfully be operated on the street for which such detour was 
established; and 

(8) the issuance of a special pennit by the City Manager as provided in subsection 
(c). 

87. A plain reading of the ordinance establishes that the entities with the greatest 

number of traffic incidents, such as Allied Waste and Blue Ridge Beverage, are immune or 

exempt from application of the ordinance. 

88. Upon information and belief, the Morgantown Police Department is to actively 

enforce the ordinance after expiration of the ninety (90) day period. 
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89. The Heavy Truck Ordinance, as enacted, fails to identify any source of legal 

authority juStifying its enactment and further fails to identify any mechanism of enforcement. 

90. The Heavy Truck. Ordinance will immediately, severely, and adversely affect 

Plaintiffs' business operations and intrastate and interstate commerce rights, and will continue to 

do so prospectively, as outlined above. 

91. Following enactment, the WV DOH again informed Morgantown that its 

municipal regulation of state highways was an unlawful exercise of municipal regulatory 

authority over a state highway. See Exhibit 14. 

92. City Council's unprecedented action does not promote the safety of the general 

public and other motorists as claimed. 

93. The Heavy Truck Ordinance disrupts the longstanding status quo with respect to 

truck traffic in and around Morgantown, on roads under the exclusive control and jurisdiction of 

theWVDOH. 

COUNT I 
STATE PREEMPTION 

DECLARATORY AND INJUCTIVE RELIEF 

94. The allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 93 are incorporated herein by reference. 

95. In West Virginia, municipalities are creations of the state and derive all powers, 

explicit and inherent, from the State. "A municipal corporation is a creature of the State, and can 

only perform such functions of government as may have been conferred by the constitution, or 

delegated to it by the law-making authority of the State. It [a municipality] has no inherent 

powers, and only such implied powers as are necessary to carry into effect those expressly 

granted." Syl. pt. 1, Toler v. City of Huntington, 168 S.E.2d 551 (W. Va. 1969) (citing Syl. pt. 1, 

Brackman's. Inc. v. City of Huntington, 27 S.E.2d 71 (W. Va 1943)). 
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96. When a conflict arises between a local ordinance and a state statute, the state 

statute will always prevail. "That municipal ordinances are inferior to in status and subordinate 

to legislative acts is a principle so fundamental that citation of authorities is unnecessary. 

Equally fundamental is the legal principle that where an ordinance is in conflict with a state law 

the former is invalid." American Tower Corp. v. Common Council of the City of Beckley, 557 

S.E.2d 752, 756 (W. Va 2001) (citing Vector Co. v. Board of Zoning Appeals, 184 S.E.2d 301, 

304 (W. Va. 1971)); see also W. Va. Const. Art. 6, Sect. 39a ("Provided, that any such [a 

municipal charter] or amendment thereto, and any such law or ordinance so adopted, shall be 

invalid and void if inconsistent or in conflict with this constitution of the general laws of the state 

then in effect, or thereafter from time to time enacted."). 

97. A municipal ordinance conflicts with a state statute, or statutory scheme, if it 

states a proposition that is irreconcilable with that contained in a state statute. See Vector Co. v. 

Board of Zoning Appeals, 184 S.E.2d 301,304 (W. Va. 1971). 

98. The powers vested in local municipalities by the State are generally stated in W. 

Va Code § 8-12-5. 

99. In enacting the Heavy Truck Ordinance, the city relied on the unfounded notion 

that Morgantown possessed the unilateral, unfettered authority to regulate state highways, state 

roads and state routes, specifically WV 7, based on non-specified safety concerns without 

reference to any source for such authority. 

100. To the contrary, "the authority and control over the state roads shall be vested in 

the Commissioner of Highways. II W. Va Code § 17-4-1. 

101. Morgantown proffered no state statute or common law source as justification for 

the Heavy Truck Ordinance. 
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102. The Heavy Truck Ordinance, and Morgantown's unlawful exercise of perceived 

municipal power, is in conflict with the West Virginia State Code, West Virginia common law, 

and the WV DOH's stated position that the WV DOH is vested with plenary statutory authority 

to regulate state highways within municipalities. See Exhibits 1,6, 7, 9 and 14. 

103. Among others, West Virginia Code Sections 17-4-1 prohibits municipalities from 

regulating state highways, state roads, and state routes as jurisdiction of state highways is vested 

solely in the WV DOH and the WV DOH "shall" control state roads. See W. Va. Code § 17-4-1. 

104. Principles of statutory construction mandate the conclusion that state road 

regulation is an area of law to be regulated entirely by the state. First, usage of the word "shall" 

in a statute has been held to confer mandatory powers on a state agency, such as the WV DOH, 

and thereby make those powers exclusive to the agency. "It is well established that the word 

'shall', in the absence of language showing a contrary intent on the part of the Legislature, should 

be afforded a mandatory connotation." Syl. pt. 4, Am. Tower Corp. v. Common Council of City 

of Beckley, 557 S.E.2d 752 (W. Va. 2001) (citing Syl. pt. 1, Nelson v. W. Va Pub. Employees 

Ins. Bd., 300 S.E.2d 86 (W. Va. 1982». 

105. WV 7 is not a "connecting part" of the state road system, such as a city street or 

city alley. WV 7 is a West Virginia state road and regulatory authority is vested in the WV 

DOH. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request expedited declaratory relief holding that the Heavy 

Truck Ordinance is void and unenforceable and Plaintiffs further request a permanent injunction 

prohibiting Morgantown from enforcing the enacted Heavy Truck Ordinance and such other and 

further relief as the Court deems to be appropriate, including their attorneys' fees and costs. 
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COUNT II 
VIOLATION OF STATE AND FEDERAL EQUAL PROTECTION 

DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

106. The allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 93 are incorporated herein by reference. 

107. The Equal Protection Clause of the West Virginia Constitution is found in Article 

III, Section 10 of the West Virginia Constitution and stands for the principle that state actors 

cannot treat similarly situated persons in disadvantageous manners. See generally Israel v. 

WVSSAC, 182 W.Va. 454 (1989). 

108. The Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteel:1th Amendment of the United States 

Constitution provides that no state shall "deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal 

protection of the laws." U.S. Const. Amend. 14, § 1. 

109. One purpose of Equal Protection Clauses is to protect every person within a state's 

jurisdiction against arbitrary discrimination occasioned by the express terms of a local ordinance 

or statute. 

110. The Equal Protection Clauses requires· that the laws of the state, and the laws of a 

State's instrumentalities such as a municipality, i.e., Morgantown, treat persons in the same 

manner as others similarly situated. 

111. Morgantown and the City Council are required to act in conformance with Article 

II, Section 10 of the West Virginia Constitution and the Fourteenth Amendment of the United 

States Constitution; 

112. The Heavy Truck Ordinance, without any rational basis, treats Plaintiffs and 

similarly situated entities seeking to travel on state highways in Morgantown's B4 Business 

District differently than other similarly situated natural persons and entities. 
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113. As the WV DOH has stated, "if the concerns are those of safety, there appears to 

be no rational basis for exempting local delivery commercial motor vehicles or governmental 

entities' commercial motor vehicles." See Exhibit 7. 

114. Indeed, Morgantown's Heavy Truck Ordinance allows the top five (5) entities 

with reported traffic incidents to continue to travel in Morgantown's B4 Business District while 

prohibiting Plaintiffs' motor carriers from traveling in and through state highways located in 

Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

115. By way of illustration, the following operators that have a history of traffic 

violations are exempt from the Heavy Truck Ordinance: (1) Mountain Line; (2) Monongalia 

County Schools; (3) Advantage Tank Lines; (4) Allied Waste; and (5) Blue Ridge Beverage 

while Plaintiffs' trucks are subject to the Heavy Truck Ordinance. 

116. By way of further example, commercial shippers of gravely hazardous materials, 

such as automobile fuel, are allowed to travel in and through state highways in Morgantown's B4 

Business District while Plaintiffs' motor carriers, carrying non-hazardous materials, are barred 

from operating on state highways in Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

117. No rational basis exists that can justify this harsh, disparate treatment. 

J 18. The Heavy Truck Ordinance violates the Equal Protection Clauses of West 

Virginia and the United States Constitution by irrationally treating Plaintiffs and their motor 

carriers differently than similarly situated entities and transporters. 

119. The Heavy Truck Ordinance was initiated and enacted by the City Council in an 

arbitrary, capricious, and unjustifiable manner. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request expedited declaratory relief holding that the Heavy 

Truck Ordinance is void and unenforceable and Plaintiffs further request a pennanent injunction 
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prohibiting Morgantown from enforcing the enacted Heavy Truck Ordinance and such other and 

further relief as the Court deems to be appropriate, including their attorneys' fees and costs. 

COUNT III 
FEDERAL PREEMPTION 

FAAAA -DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

120. The allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 93 are incorporated herein by reference. 

121. The Heavy Truck Ordinance adopted by Morgantown imposes restrictions on the 

routes and services of motor carriers providing transportation of property in intrastate and 

interstate commerce. 

122. Specifically, the Heavy Truck Ordinance prohibits motor carriers from accessing 

facilities in Morgantown via the most efficient route, WV 7. 

123. The requirement to abide by the Heavy Truck Ordinance constitutes a regulation 

of the routes and services of a motor carrier in intrastate commerce. 

124. The Federal Aviation Administration Authorization Act ("FAAAA") of 1994, 

section 601 (c), codified at 49 U.S.C. § 14S01(c)(1) and (2), states: 

[A] State, political subdivision of a State, or political authority of 2 or more States 
may not enact or enforce a law, regulation or other provision having the force and 
effect of law related to a price, route, or service of any motor carrier ... with 
respect to the transportation of property ... 

[C] [this restriction] shall not restrict the safety regulatory authority of a State 
with respect to motor vehicles, the authority of a State to impose highway route 
controls or limitations based on the size or weight of the motor vehicle or the 
hazardous nature of the cargo, or the authority of a State to regulate motor carriers 
with regard to minimum amounts of financial responsibility relating to insurance 
requirements and self-insurance authorization. 

(emphasis added). 

125. The aforementioned statutes were based on Congressional fmdings that "(1) the 

regulation of intrastate transportation of property by the States has: (A) imposed an unreasonable 
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burden on interstate commerce; (B) impeded the free flow of trade, traffic, and transportation of 

interstate commerce; and (c) placed an unreasonable cost on the American consumers. . . " 

Public Law 103-305, section 601 (a). 

126. 49 U.S.C. § 14501(c)(2) vests safety regulatory authority in a State to impose 

highway route controls or limitations based on vehicle size or weight of a motor vehicle. 

127. Morgantown is not a "State" within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. § 1450J(c)(2) and 

has no safety regulatory authority, and no ability to impede commerce traveling on state 

highways and truck routes as set forth in 49 U.S.C. § 14501(c)(2). 

128. Under the FAAAA, the Plaintiffs are motor carriers of property. 

129. Morgantown is subject to FAAAA express, field and/or conflict preemption that 

bars a local municipality from exercising safety regulatory authority to restrict intrastate 

commerce as the F AAAA has a broad preemptive pwpose that bars local governments from 

enforcing or enacting any law or regulation "related to a price, route, or service of any motor 

carrier [of property] ... with respect to the transportation of property" and no safety concern 

validates Morgantown's enactment. 49 U.S.C. § 14501 (c)(1). 

130. Plaintiffs' position is consistent with the WV DOH's insofar as the State of West 

Virginia, through the WV DOH, has the ability to regulate and control state highways. 

131. 49 U.S.C. § 14501 (c) prohibits Morgantown from enacting or enforcing any law, 

regulation, or other provisions having the force and effect of)aw, related to a route or service of 

any motor carrier with respect to the transportation of property by a motor carrier. 

132. 49 U.S.C. § 14S01(c)(2) prohibits Morgantown from exercising safety regulatory 

authority to enact ordinances that contravene authority vested in the State of West Virginia and 

theWVDOH. 
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133. Article VI, clause 2 of the u.s. Constitution (the "Supremacy Clause") provides: 

"This Constitution, and the Laws of the United States which shall be made in pursuance 

thereof. .. shall be the supreme law of the land; and the judges in every State shall be bound 

thereby, anything in the Constitution or the laws of any State to the contrary notwithstanding." 

134. Morgantown's use of purported legislative municipal power to regulate heavy 

truck access to facilities through Morgantown's B4 Business District causes a detrimental hann 

to the Plaintiffs' business operations and violates the F AAAA. 

135. Moreover, Morgantown's purported safety rationale for adopting the Heavy Truck 

Ordinance is pre-textual given Morgantown's and the City Council's course of conduct. 

136. The Heavy Trucking Ordinance is void and unenforceable because it is preempted 

under the Supremacy Clause. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request expedited declaratory relief holding that the Heavy 

Truck Ordinance is preempted, void, and unenforceable and Plaintiffs further request a 

permanent injunction prohibiting Morgantown from enforcing the enacted Heavy Truck 

Ordinance and such other and further relief as the Court deems to be appropriate, including their 

attorneys' fees and costs. 

COUNT IV 
VIOLATION OF U.S.c. § 1983 

DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

137. The allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 93 are �i�n�c�o�~�o�r�a�t�e�d� herein by reference. 

138. 42 U.S.C. § 1983 protects Plaintiffs' rights established by the Commerce Clause 

of the Constitution, Article I, Section 8, Clause 3, to engage in intrastate and interstate commerce 

free of undue burdens and discriminations by local municipalities and legislative bodies, such as 

Morgantown and the City Council. 
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139. 49 U.S.C. § 14.50 1 (c)(2) prohibits local municipalities, such as Morgantown, from 

exercising s·afety regulatory authority· to enact ordinances that contravene authority vested in the 

State of West Virginia and fundamental, long-standing principles of intrastate and interstate 

commerce. 

140. Morgantown lacks the power, express or inherent, under West Virginia or Federal 

law, to regulate intrastate and interstate commerce by prohibiting arbitrarily defined heavy trucks 

or motor carriers from traveling in and through Morgantown's B4 Business District on state 

highways. 

141. Morgantown's prohibitions unlawfully condition the right of free commerce 

because "heavy trucks" and motor carriers lawfully registered under the laws of the United States 

and the State of West Virginia are prohibited from engaging in the movement of property on 

highways in the flow of intrastate and interstate commerce. 

142. The Heavy Truck Ordinance places an unreasonable burden on the stream of 

intrastate and interstate commerce, injuring the ability of Plaintiffs to engage in their core daily 

business operations and burdening their ability to compete in the market of intrastate and 

interstate commerce, thereby depriving Plaintiffs of the benefits of intrastate and interstate 

commerce. 

143. Morgantown's total safety consequences rationale for enacting the Heavy Truck 

Ordinance is pre-textual and Morgantown can point to no empirical evidence tending to establish 

that its prohibition counteracts an existing safety concern. The Heavy Truck Ordinance has the 

purpose and effect of discriminating against and unreasonably depriving Plaintiffs of their right 

to participate in intrastate and interstate commerce. 
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144. By enacting the Heavy Truck Ordinance, Morgantowl1 has deprived Plaintiffs of 

their right to engage in intrastate and interstate commerce free of unreasonable burdens and 

discrimination, as protected by the Commerce Clause. 

145. Upon infonnation and belief, Morgantown is purporting to act under color of state 

law or a right of municipal regulation to deprive Plaintiffs, and other similarly situated 

individuals and entities, of their constitutionally and statutorily protected interest to use the State 

and Federal highway systems. 

146. Upon infonnation and belief, Morgantown is purporting to act under color of state 

law or right of municipal regulation and the asserted right to so act is arbitrary, capricious, and 

unjustifiable, as Morgantown's actions contravene law, advice of counsel, and the legal position 

of the WV DOH. 

147. Morgantown's Heavy Truck Ordinance is unlawful, void and unenforceable 

pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and the Commerce Clause of the Constitution as an unreasonable 

and unjustifiable burden on intrastate and interstate commerce. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request expedited declaratory relief holding that the Heavy 

Truck Ordinance is void and unenforceable and Plaintiffs further request a pennanent injunction 

prohibiting Morgantown from enforcing the enacted Heavy Truck Ordinance and such other and 

further relief as the Court deems to be appropriate, including their attorneys' fees and costs. 

COUNT V 
FEDERAL PREEMPTION 

STAA-DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

148. The allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 93 are incorporated herein by reference. 

149. The Surface Transportation Assistance Act ("ST AA"), Title 49, section 31114 of 

the United States Code provides: 

-26-



Access to the Interstate System: 

(a) Prohibition on denying access. A state may not enact or 
enforce a law denying to a commercial motor vehicle subject to 
this chapter [49 U .S.C. §§ 31111 et seq.] or subchapter I of this 
chapter [49 U.S.C. §§ 31111 et seq.] reasonable access between--

(1) the Dwight D. Eisenhower System of Interstate and Defense 
Highways (except a segment exempted under section 31111(f) or 
21113(e) of this title and other qualifying Federal-aid Primary 
System highways designated by the Secretary of Transportation); 
and 

(2) terminals, facilities for food, repairs, rest, and points of loading 
and unloading for household goods carriers,. motor carriers of 
passengers, or any truck tractor semi-trailer combination in which 
the semitrailer has a length of not more than 28.5 feet and that 
generally operates as part of a vehicle combination described in 
section 31111(c) of this title [49 U.S.C. § 31111 (c)]. 

150. The Federal Highway Administration has enacted regulations regarding the use of 

the United States Interstate Highway System at 23 C.F.R. § 658.l9(d), which provide: "(d) No 

state may enact or enforce any law denying access within 1 road-mile from the National Network 

[of Federal Highways] using"the most reasonable and practicable route available except for 

specific safety reasons on individual routes." 

151. Nuzum and Preston operation "commercial motor vehicles" as defined by the 

STAA, 49 U.S. Code § 31114. 

152. WV 7 is within one road-mile of the National Network of Federal Highways, 

specifically Interstate 68 and Interstate 79. 

153. The most reasonable and practicable route for Plaintiffs to move products or 

property to certain facilities located on the Monongahela River is to travel on Interstate 68 and 

WV 7 through Morgantown's B4 Business District. 

154. The Heavy Truck Ordinance violates 49 U.S.C. §§ 31114 and 23 C.F.R. 

§ 658.19(d) in that the ordinance effectively denies Plaintiffs reasonable access to the Federal 
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Interstate Highway System as Plaintiffs' motor carriers are prohibited from using the most 

reasonable and practicable route to transport natural resource products to export facilities within 

intrastate and interstate commerce. 

155. The Heavy Truck Ordinance violates 49 U.S.C. §§ 31114 and 23 C.F.R. 

§ 65 8.19( d) in that only the State of West Virginia may enact or enforce any law denying access 

within one road-mile from the National Network. 

156. Further, assuming Morgantown is a sufficient state actor, the Heavy Truck 

Ordinance violates 49 U.S.C. §§ 31114 and 23 C.F.R. § 658.19(d) because there are no specific 

safety reasons on individual routes, such as WV 7, justifying Morgantown's' restrictions in 

intrastate and interstate commerce. 

157. The Heavy Truck Ordinance frustrates the goal of the STAA of ensuring 

reasonable access to highways. 

158. The Heavy �~�r�u�c�k� Ordinance contravenes the STAA's express preemption clause. 

159. Further, the STAA authorizes injunctive relief, and specifically permits a district 

court to issue a permanent injunction to ensure compliance with the STAA. 49 U.S.C. § 31115. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request expedited declaratory relief holding that the Heavy 

Truck Ordinance is preempted, void, and unenforceable and Plaintiffs further request a 

permanent injunction prohibiting Morgantown from enforcing the enacted Heavy Truck 

Ordinance and such other and further relief as the"Court deems to be appropriate, including their 

attorneys' fees and costs. 

COUNT VI 
VIOLA nON OF U.S.C. § 1983-CONTRACT CLAUSE 

DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

160. The allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 93 are incorporated herein by reference. 
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161. The Contract Clause of the United States Constitution provides that no state shall 

"pass any ... Law impairing the Obli'gation of Contract .... " U.S. Const. Art. I, § 10, Cl. 1. 

162. The Heavy Truck Ordinance, passed by an instrumentality of the state, 

Morgantown, prohibits and unlawfully interferes with Plaintiffs' existing and prospective 

contractual relationships related to the transport of products in and around Morgantown. 

163. If Plaintiffs are not permitted to enjoy the benefits of their contractual 

arrangements, Plaintiffs will suffer harm that substantially interferes with Plaintiffs' right to 

transact business in intrastate commerce. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request expedited declaratory relief holding that the Heavy 

Truck Ordinance is void and unenforceable and Plaintiffs further request a permanent injunction 

prohibiting Morgantown from enforcing the enacted Heavy Truck Ordinance and such other and 

further relief as the Court deems to be appropriate, including their attorneys' fees and costs. 

PLAINTIFFS REQUEST EXPEDITED RELIEF PURSUANT TO W.VA. T. CT. R.16.12 

DATED: October 17,2014. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Plaintiffs, 
By Couns 

Paul. 0 # 5191 
James B. Shockley (WV Bar #7222) 
CRANSTON & EDWARDS, PLLC 
1200 Dorsey Avenue, Suite II 
Morgantown, WV 26501 
Phone: (304) 296-3500 
Fax: (304) 296-3600 
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VERIFICATION 

I, Roger A. Nuzum, being first duly sworn, aver that I am the President of Nuzum 

Trucking Company, that I am authorized to make this Verification on its behalf and that the 

statements of fact contained in the foregoing Verified Complaint are true and correct to the best 

of my knowledge, information, and belief, subject to correction if error should appear at a later 

date. 

Taken, subscribed and sworn to before me this 6 �~� of October, 2014. 

My commission expires: 
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